
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
10.30 am, THURSDAY, 25TH NOVEMBER, 2021 

 
NOTE: A BRIEFING SESSION WILL BE HELD FOR MEMBERS AT 10.00 AM 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Virtual Meeting - Zoom 

 
Please contact for public access 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Sioned Mai Jones 

01286 679665 

SionedMaiJones@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED Friday, 19 November 2021) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 

CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP (18) 
 
 
 

Plaid Cymru (10) 
 

Councillors 
 

Menna Baines Beca Brown 
Annwen Daniels Alan Jones Evans 

Gareth Tudor Morris Jones Linda Ann Jones 
Olaf Cai Larsen Dafydd Owen 

Berwyn Parry Jones Linda Morgan 
 
 

Independent (5) 
 

Councillors 
 

Richard Medwyn Hughes Eryl Jones-Williams 
Beth Lawton Dewi Wyn Roberts 

Angela Russell  
 

 
LLais Gwynedd (1) 

 
Councillor Anwen J. Davies 

   
 

Propel (1) 
 

Councillor Peter Read 
 
 

Individual Member (1) 
 

Councillor 
Empty Seat 

   

 
Ex-officio Members 

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council  
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of personal interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman 
for consideration. 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

4 - 9 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this 
committee held on the 30th September, 2021 be signed as a true record. 

 

 

5.   AUTISM STRATEGY 2021-23 
 

10 - 17 

 To provide an overview of the Autism Plan 2021-23 within the Children and 
Supporting Families Department. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Care Scrutiny Committee 30-09-2021 

1 
 

 

CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
30/09/2021 

 

 
Present:  Councillor Eryl Jones-Williams (Chairman). 

   Councillor Angela Russell (Vice-chair) 

 

Councillors:  

Menna Baines, Beca Brown, R Medwyn Hughes, Gareth Tudor Morris Jones, Olaf Cai Larsen, 

Beth Lawton, Dafydd Owen, Dewi Wyn Roberts 

 

Officers present:  
  

Bethan Adams (Scrutiny Advisor), Einir Rhian Davies (Democracy Services Officer), Llywela Haf 
Owain (Senior Language and Scrutiny Adviser). 

Present for item 5: 
Councillor Craig ab Iago (Cabinet Member for Housing and Property), Carys F Williams (Head 
of Housing and Property Department) and Hedd M Tomos (Housing Supply Manager, 
Housing and Property Department). 
 

Present for item 6: 

Councillor Dafydd Meurig (Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being and Link with 
the Health Service), Aled Davies (Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department), Rhion 
Glyn (Senior Business Manager, Adults, Health and Well-being Department), Hawis M Jones 
(Projects Team Manager, Adults, Health and Well-being Department)  
 

Present for item 7: 

Councillor Dafydd Meurig (Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being and Link with 
the Health Service), Aled Davies (Head of Adults, Health and Well-being Department), 
Mannon E Trappe (Senior Manager – Safeguarding and Quality Assurance, Adults, Health 
and Well-being Department)  
 

 

 
1.   APOLOGIES 

 
Councillor Anwen Daniels, Councillor Anwen J Davies, Councillor Berwyn Parry Jones, 
Councillor Linda Morgan and Councillor Elwyn Jones (ex-officio member) 
 
2.    DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Cai Larsen in item 5 as he sat on the Board of Adra. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Care Scrutiny Committee 30-09-2021 

2 
 

Councillor Eryl Jones-Williams in item 5 as he was a tenant of Adra. 

Councillor Gareth Tudor Morris Jones in item 7 because a member of his family was being 

cared for in one of Gwynedd's Nursing Homes. 

Councillor Eryl Jones-Williams in item 7 as his wife was receiving a domiciliary care service in 

Gwynedd. 

The members were not of the view that they were prejudicial interests, and they did not 

withdraw from the meeting during the discussion on the items. 

 
3.       URGENT ITEMS  
 
None to note. 
 

4.      MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee held on 1   
July 2021, as a true record. 
 

5. ONE-STOP SHOP FOR HOUSING MATTERS 
 
Submitted – the One Stop Shop report by the Head of Department, requesting input  
from the Committee Members on commencing the consultation process. She referred to 
the One Stop Shop as a point of access for the residents of Gwynedd to be assisted with 
their housing needs. 
 
The Cabinet Member added that it was very important to obtain information from the 
Councillors' perspective in terms of understanding local needs, and also having homes for 
individuals in the right places. 
 
Members expressed their thanks for the report, and acknowledged that it had been a 
positive step in identifying the problem, as there was a feeling amongst members that there 
were many social houses in some wards and several individuals on waiting lists.  Members 
were given the opportunity to ask questions, and the responses were noted as follows:  
 
In terms of the concern that people who are already vulnerable encountered problems such 
as completing forms, being unsure who they should contact when their circumstances 
changed and not receiving an update, a member stated that they were pleased that the One 
Stop Shop would simplify the process and respond to these concerns. It was confirmed that 
the aim was for the One Stop Shop to be proactive and maintain better contact, and 
according to the Head of Housing and Property Department, to guide individuals and try to 
resolve problems in one place. 
 
A member enquired about the detail of the 33 projects referred to in the Report and 
questioned what they aimed to do in specific areas, and the timeline.  The Head of Housing 
and Property Department confirmed that there was a lot of work going on in the 

Page 5

https://democratiaeth.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/documents/s25735/Y%20Fframwaith%20Maethu%20Cenedlaethol.pdf?LLL=1


Care Scrutiny Committee 30-09-2021 

3 
 

background, such as on Council-owned land, and confirmed that a report would be 
submitted to the Council's Leadership Team in due course which would include a draft 
timetable.   
 
She noted that the principle of a One Stop Shop was excellent and that everything would be 
available on-line/electronically, and any updates to a request would be made electronically, 
which would subsequently improve communication. 
 
It was reported that the Third Sector was keen to be involved in such an arrangement.  
 
A member mentioned yet again the complexity of the current system, and expressed 
concern about the perception that there was a shortage of places for individuals to live, and 
that making the application route easier for these people would be invaluable, but if there 
was no housing available for them, that was another problem entirely.  It was confirmed 
that the Housing Action Plan would of course go some of the way to respond to the 
situation, but there was much coordination work to do between the Council and Housing 
Associations.  Since the number of homeless people was very high, a member enquired 
about the arrangement to bring empty properties back into use, and noted Members' wish 
to be notified of any empty homes in their Wards.   
 
Reference was made to the importance of the Housing One Stop Shop being staffed 
properly, with information being kept in one place.  
 
It was confirmed that input from not only the Members but the Members of the Senedd and 
Members of Parliament was essential at the start of the process, because individuals were 
also contacting their MS/MP.  
  
The Committee gave its support to the way forward and thanked the Officers for their work.  
 
 
RESOLVED: To accept the report on the concept of establishing a One Stop Shop for Housing 
and identify the next steps, requesting that the Department addresses the points raised.   
 
6. GWYNEDD POPULATION NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

 
Submitted – the report on the approach for preparing and conducting the Gwynedd 
Population Needs Assessment, by the Projects Team Manager.  She noted that the timetable 
was challenging because matters relating to the pandemic had had to take priority and 
officers had been diverted.  She emphasised the importance of the report, noting that it 
must give a clear and accurate reflection of people's requirements, and that the documents 
could form the basis for grant applications.  She further reported that the Act made it a 
requirement to publish regional reports, and as such the information relating to Gwynedd 
must be fed into the regional report.  In light of the tight schedule, it was proposed to feed 
as much information as possible to the report by the end of October 2021, using the 
information that was already known, and then continue with the work.  It was confirmed 
that the Government was treating the document as a continuous document. 
 

Page 6



Care Scrutiny Committee 30-09-2021 

4 
 

The Senior Business Manager reiterated that it was a very challenging timetable, but it was a 
statutory requirement for us to complete the Assessment. He noted that the regional 
reporting was difficult, as the six Authorities had very distinct features to each other, but with 
one Health Board for the six areas.  

 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions, and the responses were noted as 
follows: 
 
A member expressed concern that the Needs Assessment asked questions about many 
important issues for the future, but the timetable for responding was tight. It was confirmed 
that the Well-being Act 2015 made it a Statutory Requirement to respond, and that the first 
assessment had been published in 2017.  It was confirmed that the Department had been 
working on the assessment for six months by now, and it was important to keep an eye on 
the long-term future. 

 
It was confirmed that there were no population figures available at present, as the purpose 
of the paper was to present the approach towards completing the Needs Assessment.  Joint-
working with the Health Board could prove challenging at times, but there were links in place 
for this piece of work. 

 
A member noted concern about the shortage of nursing care beds in North Wales and hospital 
discharge plans in light of the fact that people lived longer, together with the Council and the 
Health Board's ability to respond to the Needs Assessment and Covid issues, and on top of all 
this, mental health matters. 

 
The Cabinet Member thanked the Members for their useful comments, and referred to the 
themes in the comments in terms of the difficulty of compiling a 10-year projection.  He noted 
that there were some matters requiring further research, and that there was a wider role here 
to try and summarise different experiences from different parts of the county.   

 
RESOLVED: To accept the approach submitted for preparing the Population Needs 
Assessment 2022-2027, recognising the challenges linked to the timetable. 

7. THE QUALITY ASSURANCE SERVICE WITHIN THE SAFEGUARDING UNIT  
 
Submitted – the report on the Quality Assurance Service within the Safeguarding Unit, by 
the Senior Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Manager.  The item was intended to provide 
details on how the Council monitored the County's adult care provisions, which included a 
range of organisations.  She provided an overview of the team's work.  She noted the 
concern that the Service was responsible for monitoring a number of establishments , but 
had only managed to monitor a limited number, and had been unable to visit the domiciliary 
care or day care services.  Furthermore, she noted that during Covid, they had been unable 
to conduct the unannounced visits as would have happened usually, and instead the staff 
had made telephone contact with the providers. 
 
She reported that five homes had been placed under the Escalating Concerns procedure 
over the past 18 months.  The Quality Assurance Team had worked with each one to 

Page 7



Care Scrutiny Committee 30-09-2021 

5 
 

prepare and implement improvement programmes in order to overcome problems and 
improve the quality of care services. One of the possible effects of the process was an 
embargo on admissions being imposed, which in turn had an impact on individuals and their 
families, and of course a lack of money coming in to sustain the business.  She also reported 
that three homes in Gwynedd had closed over the past two years. 
 
The Senior Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Manager referred to the Winterbourne View 
report, where a lack of monitoring was reported as being a factor, together with a lack of 
overview by the Commissioners. 
 
She confirmed that visits to the various sites were conducted roughly every two years at 
present, but ideally we needed to visit every six months.  She noted that when a problem 
arose, visits took place to try and prevent a site from being placed under the Escalating 
Concerns procedure. While this was absolutely essential, it did have an impact on the team's 
ability to monitor other services. 
 
Members were given an opportunity to ask questions, and the responses were noted as 
follows: 
 
Concern was expressed that five services had entered the escalating concerns procedure, 
and concern about the stark difference in the frequency of visits by Gwynedd Council and a 
neighbouring authority. Members questioned whether there was a way of diverting 
resources, be those financial or other, to strengthen the service. The Senior Safeguarding 
and Quality Assurance Manager confirmed that, following a case of escalating concerns, the 
next stage was to formulate a development plan and give the service the opportunity to 
secure improvements.  She stated that she shared the concern about the lack of resources, 
and referred to the unsuccessful bid made in 2020/21 for a budget to employ additional 
staff. She noted that the bid would be re-submitted this year.   
 
Another Member noted that it was a difficult situation, and that the figures were very 
similar to the situation before 2016, but the Senior Safeguarding and Quality Assurance 
Manager stated that the difference by now was the good relationship with providers, area 
teams and the officers. 
 
The Head of Service confirmed that the issue regarding capacity was significant, although  
he accepted that the sharing of resources to all services that were under pressure was 
challenging.  He noted that this was an area of work where funding could be allocated, but 
they would still need more, but he reported that he was pleased to see the early signs of 
concerns being addressed immediately.  He noted that resources across the Department 
were consumed when a home was in difficulties, and took staff away from other work.   He 
noted that there had been some positive developments during the Covid period, such as 
greater trust between the Department and the providers. 
 
He noted that the changes that had happened and changes that were afoot in domiciliary 
care demonstrated the need to monitor quality assurance effectively, but that they did not 
have the capacity to do this fully at present. He noted that temporary funding did not offer a 
long-term solution.  He stated the importance of being aware of the team's work, and the 

Page 8



Care Scrutiny Committee 30-09-2021 

6 
 

importance of feedback from providers, and noted his appreciation that the team was 
making every effort to work proactively. 
 
Members gave thanks for the honest report which raised concerns, but they also gave 
thanks for the good collaboration, and the need to protect this collaboration.   
 
The Committee stated that they were there to support, and would appreciate an update 
within six to nine months, although it was concerned as to how some issues could be 
resolved.   
 
They gave thanks for the report and noted that there had been career development 
opportunities within the department, with a Home Manager having joined the Team, while 
one member of the team had moved to be a Provider Area Manager. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being reiterated the fact that this was an 
honest report and that the observations would be taken into consideration, together with 
options within the Department. 

 
It was agreed to accept the report, and to note the concern about the issue of capacity with 
the Cabinet and the desire for something to be done about it. 

 
RESOLVED:  

 
1) To accept the report that provided an overview of the work of the Quality Assurance 

Unit within the Adults, Health and Well-being Department  
2) To note concern about the lack of staff capacity in the unit and the risks that could 

emerge in regards to the safety and well-being of those receiving care, the 
sustainability of the market and the consequent risks to the Council. 

3) That the Chair would send an e-mail to the Cabinet members to convey the 
committee's concern about the lack of staff capacity and the need to secure 
adequate staff capacity in order to offer suitable support and monitor the quality of 
services. 

 

 
  

The meeting commenced at 10:30 and concluded at 12:25 
 

 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 9



REPORT TO THE CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date of meeting:  30 November 2021 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Dilwyn Morgan 

Councillor Dafydd Meurig 

Contact Officer: Aled Gibbard, Senior Manager 

Contact E-mail: aledwyngibbard@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

Title of Item: Autism Plan 2021-23 

 
 

1 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Members will already be aware that autism is a priority for us as a Council, 

therefore, it is my pleasure to present this Plan to the Care Scrutiny Committee 

today. 

 

1.2 We intend to make improvements within the field, jointly with our key partners, 

namely the Health Board and also Anglesey Council. 

 

1.3 The work is partly influenced by the work which has been carried out as a result of 

a complaint made to the Council in relation to the service provided.  The complaint 

was referred to the Public Services Ombudsman, and the Ombudsman provided 

recommendations to us as a Council.  Therefore, this Plan seeks to respond to the 

lessons from that complaint, together with the Ombudsman's recommendation, 

and it is important to note our continued commitment to try to improve our service 

in response to the opinion of our users. 

 

1.4 Another key part which has been carried out in order to ensure that we are able to 

create an Autism Plan with the right foundation, was commissioning an external 

Consultant (namely Hugh Morgan, a very prominent expert in the field of learning 

disabilities and autism here in Wales), to undertake a comprehensive multi-agency 

review of the field, giving us his opinion on what needed to change and develop. 

 

1.5 He was asked to focus specifically on the criteria for receiving a service; the 

assessment process; access to children and young people with high-functioning 

autism; autism and no learning disability, and the handover period to services such 

as Adults. The intention was to create a plan which would ensure that these 

children and young people gain access to support tailored to their individual needs. 

 

1.6 The consultant's review was, therefore, crucial for us in order to develop the Autism 

Plan which is presented to you today. 

 

1.7 It is also important to draw members' attention to the fact that the Welsh 

Government has published a consultative Code of Practice of the Delivery of 

Autism Services.  This Code of Practice came into force on 1 September this year. 

The consultant's work considered the Code of Practice when completing the 

review.  The Code requires a Local Autism Plan as well as the need to review it 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



annually, therefore, as a Council and sub-region, we will be well-positioned in 

terms of the Code of Practice in having this Plan adopted and implemented.   

 

1.8 Though the initial work started from the Derwen Service direction (namely the 

Anglesey and Gwynedd integrated service for disabled children and children who 

are ill), this service is only one part of the bigger picture.  It cannot be considered 

as a separate entity to all public services involving the autism field of work.  The 

Consultant's review confirms that the Derwen Service (Social Services, Nurses 

and Psychologists) has expertise and a good understanding of children and young 

people with autism. However, it must be noted that autism is not necessarily an 

obvious and visible disability and it is unavoidable, therefore, children on the 

spectrum come into contact with children services at a more general level. 

Consequently, the Derwen Service also acts as a resource which provides advice 

and guidance to children services at a more general level. 

 

1.9 It is important to give you as members the context in terms of the significant 

increase we have seen in the number of children receiving a diagnosis of autism 

in the County.  We anticipate that there will be a significant increase in the demand 

for children services as well as adults services over the coming years.  It has 

become apparent that there is a gap in services for those children with autism, but 

no learning disability, particularly for young people aged 14-17. Working alongside 

the Education Department will, therefore, be crucial as we move forward. 

 

 

2 THE PLAN 

 

2.1 As noted above, it is essential with this field that key partners work together if 

we are to see a sustainable and effective change in the future.   Having received 

the external Consultant, we as a Council asked Anglesey Council and Betsi 

Cadwaladr Health Board for their agreement to establish a sub-regional Autism 

Project Board, in order to create the Autism Plan 2021-23 for the local area.  

We are very grateful to our partners for agreeing to this proposal. 

 

2.2 Though members will be entirely aware of the work context in terms of Covid-

19, it is important to note that the work which has happened across partners, 

and also in terms of the work of the external Consultant, happened while also 

trying to cope with one of the biggest challenges in our history as a Council and 

the wider public sector.  It is, therefore, testament to our commitment to the 

field, that the work which started before the pandemic began, has continued 

despite the enormous pressure on managers, officers and staff.  I would like to 

acknowledge and thank everyone for prioritising the work during such a 

challenging period. 

 

2.3 The Project Board was established in 2020, and the Board includes 

representation from Gwynedd Council, Anglesey Council and Betsi Cadwaladr 

Health Board.  Many services are provided jointly, therefore, it was essential for 

the Plan to be co-developed. As a result of the Consultant's review, there was 

a golden opportunity for the Council to offer guidance and a clear direction to 

Page 11



ensure that the multi-agency plan is developed to improve the experiences of 

children, young people and their families across the sub-region. 

 

2.4 The Council presented the recommendations of the external consultant's 

Review to the Project Board, and they were accepted in full.  The Project Board 

has been spending the past year addressing those recommendations, in order 

to develop this Autism Plan, together with developing action points. 

 

2.5 As members will see from the action points, a few actions have already been 

implemented. A co-ordinator has already been identified and has started in 

order to implement some elements. Initially, they will assist with elements of 

developing the training programme and focusing on gathering data and 

information from relevant agencies regarding children and adults with autism.  

This will allow the Project Board to have a firm picture when reviewing the Plan 

and forward-plan once the Plan has been adopted. 

 

2.6 For information, there is a National Autism Team (IAS) who have a central role 

in raising awareness of autism in the community.  This work is developed with 

a specific aim of including autism people in the process of developing and 

disseminating resources. In addition, post-diagnostic support is provided by 

neuro-developmental health services and the IAS for adults, parents, children, 

carers and professionals.  By now, a representative from the Children and 

Adults Department meets regularly with the National Autism Team in order to 

share information and promote developments in the field. 

 
2.7 The plan as a whole is not cost-neutral, and additional resources are needed 

for it to be realised. To fund the jobs element, it is estimated that an additional 

investment of £150,000 will be needed at this point. As it is a joint plan, it is 

expected that the partners will contribute to the total cost. It is, therefore, 

anticipated that the Gwynedd Council contribution will be £50,000.  

 

3 EQUALITY 

 

3.1 The Equality Act 2010 places clear duties on public sector organisations to 

prevent discrimination and promote equality for people with specific Protected 

Characteristics. These are - age, disability, gender reassignment, race, religion 

or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 

maternity. Specific duties involve providing reasonable adaptations for disabled 

people, including autistic people, to help them to access the services they need.  

 
4 NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

 

4.1 The report will be submitted to the Cabinet on 30 November asking them to 

approve the Autism Plan 2021-23, included in Appendix 1.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Autism Plan 2021-23 

1. The definition of Autism 
 

 
“The term autistic spectrum condition (ASC) is used to describe the group of  
complex neuro developmental symptoms, of variable severity, that are characterised  
by challenges in social interaction and communication and by restricted or repetitive 
patterns of behaviour, thought and sensory feelings”. 
(Code of Practice on the Delivery of Autism Services, Welsh Government 2021) 
 
An autistic spectrum condition (ASC) is a developmental disability that affects how 
people communicate, behave or interact with others. Some people may have very 
obvious features, and others may not. The common thread is differences in social, 
communication and behavioural skills compared with people who are not on the 
spectrum. In women, the presenting features can be very subtle, which makes it 
more difficult to identify the signs, as women and girls can be very good at hiding 
symptoms and hiding the condition from their friends, family and professionals in the 
health field in particular. 
 

2. The Purpose of the Plan 
 

 
2.1 

 
The aim of the plan is to provide the context for developing a strategic direction 
in order to improve outcomes for people with autism and their carers. 
 

 
2.2 

 
A review of the current provision, undertaken by an independent consultant and 
reported to a project board which included Gwynedd Council's Children and 
Adults Services, Isle of Anglesey Children and Adults Service and the Betsi 
Cadwaladr University Health Board, identified gaps in the provision for people 
with autism, particularly for those who do not have a learning disability. 
 

 
2.3 

 
The autism code of practice came into force on 1 September 2021. It provides 
clarity to local health boards, local authorities and Regional Partnership Boards 
on the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act and / or NHS (Wales) Act 
2006 and the responsibilities and the services that they are required to provide 
in order to support autistic people in their daily lives. Therefore, this plan will 
provide a focus to ensure compliance with the new Code of Practice. 
 

 
2.4 

 
Considering the financial constraints faced by the Council, some of the 
recommendations are achieved by re-designing services or re-prioritising 
budgets. However, the plan asks for greater focus on raising awareness, 
partnership methods and better coordination of Services - additional funding 
will be needed for these initiatives. In addition, partnership working provides 
opportunities to align community resources and attract third sector funding. 

Page 13



 

3. Key Issues 
 

 
3.1 

 
Access to health and social care services - a key feature of people with 
autism is a difficulty in communicating and expressing themselves and their 
needs. Assessing an individual with autism who does not have a learning 
disability is challenging as their needs are often hidden and their impact can 
depend on the circumstances. The families of people with autism tell us that 
professionals often miss or are unable to understand the impact of 
communication difficulties when carrying out assessments. Someone who may 
appear to have capacity could have difficulties because of their inability to 
communicate or understand social situations that others take for granted. 
 

 
3.2 

 
Diagnosis - In line with the national strategy, we need to develop easy access 
to a diagnosis and post-diagnosis support, which is coordinated to assist people 
to access services and social care networks. There is a need to develop clearer 
roles and guidance to provide support to families as they await an assessment 
and a diagnosis. 
 

 
3.3 

 
Post-diagnosis Advice and Support - The range or people's needs and the 
support they will require after their diagnosis will vary greatly. Most people with 
autism, but who do not have a learning disability, will have low or moderate care 
needs and their requirements will mainly relate to communication, building a 
social network, promoting independence, employment, housing and 
maintaining stability. However, some may have critical or substantial needs and 
they will require 24 hour support and supervision. Access to post-diagnosis 
advice and support will vary. There is a need to develop clear guidance 
regarding the level and type of post-diagnosis intervention, advice, support and 
review.  This would ensure that people know / can contact relevant support 
services. 
 

 
3.4 

 
Young People during the transition period - The largest proportion of 
children with ASD receiving a service from the Derwen Integrated Team are in 
the 14-17 year old category. Therefore, the transition from children services to 
adults services is a pinch point for the service. The transition pathway is 
complex, as the transition age into adults services is not the same in every 
service. There is a need to focus more on those children with autism who do 
not have a learning disability and who would therefore not be in receipt of a 
service from Derwen at present. 
 

 
3.5 

 
Training - Every member of staff who works directly with children, young 
people or adults should undertake awareness training. Evidence suggests that 
raising a basic awareness and providing training on autism can substantially 
improve people's ability to communicate with people with autism. We are 
developing focussed training materials on understanding autism, including an 
information booklet and e-learning module. We have started to map the 
education and training requirements of practitioners. In partnership with 
Anglesey Council and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, we will 

Page 14



develop tiers of training for general and specialised services. This will be 
steered by work being done on a national level through the National Autism 
Service.  
In addition, statutory bodies will be expected to undertake an analysis of autism 
training needs for their staff, tailored to their professional needs. 
 
 

 
3.6 

 
National Autism Service - The Service offers a diagnostic assessment for 
adults, but they do not work directly with children and young people. There is a 
need to strengthen the link with the service from the direction of Children's 
Services and Adults Services. Developing a pattern of information sharing and 
collaboration on developing useful resources in the field is essential in order to 
influence the improvement of services locally. 
 

 
3.7 

 
Third Sector - There is a need to identify partners who can provide low level 
services for people with ASD. The voluntary sector can play its part in 
developing skilled, low level and low-cost practical support services for young 
people with autism or who do not have a formal diagnosis of a Learning 
Disability in Gwynedd that needs to be addressed.  Introducing a similar model 
in Gwynedd would provide an effective service that improves the quality of life 
of young people with autism; helping prevent emergencies from happening, but 
it will also reduce the pressure on the statutory services. The need for such 
services will become increasingly important should the current increase in ASD 
diagnosis lead to a greater demand on statutory services. 
 

4. Actions for 2021-22 Timetable 

 
1 

 
Establishment of a Local Autism Partnership Board - In 
accordance with the Code of Practice, regional partnership 
boards, local health boards and local authorities must 
gather information about the degree in which outcomes are 
improved and the quality of the services provided to autistic 
people and their family or carers. Service improvements 
need to align with Welsh Government's autism strategic 
action plan. The local plan also needs to be reviewed on an 
annual basis. Currently, the project board includes key 
partners from the statutory agencies. Therefore, it is 
recommended that the current Project Board transforms 
into a Local Autism Partnership Board, to include 
representation for autistic people. This will ensure 
supervision of service development and improvement, 
gather key strategic data and an annual review of the plan. 
 

 
Established 

 
2 

 
Appointment of a Coordinator / Project Officer to 
develop Autism Services - Currently, there is a lack of 
data in relation to the numbers and profiles of children and 
young people who have a diagnosis of ASD. Establishing 
this role to collate this information across the local authority, 
the health board and education will assist when planning to 
improve services. The post would also offer a regular 

 
November 2021 

Page 15



contact with the National Autism Service, avoiding any 
duplication, identifying gaps and developing a network for 
professionals involved with the provision of services for 
autistic people. The post will also assist with the 
implementation of elements of the action plan. 
 

 
3 

 
Establishing the Role of ASD Transition Practitioner 
(14-25 years) - This post would be co-located across 
children and adults Learning Disabilities Services and 
would include access to those children and young people 
where there is no learning disability diagnosis. 
 

 
April 2022, 
subject to 
financial 
investment 

 
4 

 
Establishing the Role of ASD Practitioner (Support 
during the assessment / diagnosis) (14-25 years) - The 
increase in the demand for an ASD assessment means that 
there is a waiting list. Providing advice and support at this 
point would assist to manage the demand for post-
diagnosis services and would promote support and early 
intervention with the aim of reducing the demand for post-
diagnosis statutory services. 

 
April 2022, 
subject to 
financial 
investment 

 
5 

 
ASD Training - A multi-tier programme of training, 
including e-learning, is being developed. This is provided 
across general services to increase autism awareness as 
well as more specialised training for practitioners who work 
directly with autistic people. 
 
Undertake an audit of staff training needs, giving 
consideration to the level of contact of individual roles with 
autistic people. This will consider direct work with autistic 
people as well as jobs where it is possible, via face-to-face 
contact with the public, to come into contact and therefore 
there is a need for a level of awareness about their needs.  
 

 
September 2021 
- March 2022 
 
 
 
 
November 2021 
- March 2022 

 
6 

 
Engagement with the National Autism Service - 
Undertake a mutually-beneficial engagement strategy that 
will avoid any potential duplication, ensuring clarity of 
information and advice provided to adults and children and 
young people and their families. Effective communication 
and information sharing will assist to develop services and 
share information in relation to the outcomes for autistic 
people in Gwynedd. 
 

 
Already 
happening 

 
7 

 
Investigate the potential for developing third sector 
Autism Services - there is a need to further investigate the 
development of skilled, low level practical support services. 
There are examples of practical activities being undertaken 
by third sector organisations that receive Welsh 
Government and other grant funding. Introducing such a 

 
April 2022 

Page 16



model in Gwynedd provides an effective service to improve 
the quality of life of people with autism and manage any 
additional demand on statutory services. 
 

 

 

This is a scheme under the supervision of the joint Project Board with Anglesey County 

Council and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board. This will be monitored and 

reviewed annually. 

Welsh Government has declared with a monitoring framework will be developed jointly 

with the Regional Partnership Boards. Additionally, a review of neurodevelopmental 

services has commenced since February 2021. This review will be completed by March 

2022 and will consequently inform the second clause of the Government's Action Plan 

for 2022-23. Any outcomes from this work will be reported to the Board and will be 

included in the plan as appropriate. 

 

 

Page 17


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 AUTISM STRATEGY 2021-23

